




Page 1 of 4 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 7TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FOLLOWED BY PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY MEETING 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
TUESDAY, JULY 7TH, 2015 AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

The City Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma met in regular session on the above date 
and time in the Council Chamber upstairs at City Hall, 12 North Rowe Street in Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma.  This meeting was followed immediately by a meeting of the Pryor Public Works 
Authority.  Notice of these meetings was posted on the East bulletin board located outside to the 
South of the entrance doors. Notice was also faxed to The Paper and The Times newspapers and 
delivered to the Council members. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PRAYER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/ ROLL CALL. 
Mayor Jimmy Tramel called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. The Prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance were conducted by Mayor Tramel. Roll call was conducted by City Clerk Eva Smith. 
Council members present included:  Roger Willcutt, Yolanda Thompson, Greg Rosamond, 
Randy Chitwood, and Drew Stott. Council members absent: Cheryl Hedgpath, Houston Brittain, 
Ryan Rains. 
 

Department Heads and other City Officials present:  City Attorney K. Ellis Ritchie, Police Chief 
Steve Lemmings, Assistant Police Chief Derek Melton, Fire Chief Tim Thompson, Assistant 
Fire Chief B.K. Young, Park Superintendent Frank Powell, Library Director Susan Newberry, 
Building Inspector/ Code Enforcer Doug Moore. 
 

Others:  Pryor Main Street Director BJ Cummings, Mehlburger Brawley Engineer Steve Powell, 
Police Captain James Willyard, Library Board Members Paul Stephens, Jack Hardy and Kathy 
LaValley, Library Employee Jacinda Ramsey. 
 

2. PETITIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
(LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES) 

There were no petitions from the audience. 
3. MAYOR'S REPORT: 

There was no report given. 
4. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 

a. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY 
CODE SECTION 7-4-2 REGARDING THE PARK BOARD. 

There was no action on this item (Comments only). 7-4-2 Section 1c – discussion with Mayor 
and Council’s approval. 
 

b. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY 
CODE SECTION 7-5-2 REGARDING THE LIBRARY BOARD. 

There was no action on this item (Comments only). Jack Hardy addressed the Council. Kim 
Ritchie responded to explain why this is being presented. Kathy LaValley spoke as well. 
 

c. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY 
CODE SECTION 7-6-2 REGARDING THE CEMETERY BOARD. 

There was no action on this item. 
 

d. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY 
CODE TITLE 9 BUILDING REGULATIONS AND CODES ADDING SECTION 
9-1B-7 REGARDING UNDERGROUND LINES AND UTILITY LINES. 

There was no action on this item. 
 

e. FIRST AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE  AMENDING TITLE 10 BY 
ADDING CHAPTER 1A, SECTIONS 1, 2, 3 AND 4 TO THE CITY CODE OF 
THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, 
REGARDING ZONING COMMISSION CREATION AND COMPOSITION; 
QUORUM; MEETINGS, ORGANIZATION AND RULES; POWERS, DUTIES 
AND AUTHORITIES THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

There was no action on the first reading of this item (Comments only). This is not the final 
reading and was not declared an emergency.  
 

f. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY 
CODE, SECTION 10-1-1 REGARDING PLANNING COMMISSION – 
CREATION; COMPOSITION. 

There was no action on this item. 
 



Page 2 of 4 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 7TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

g. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY 
CODE SECTION 10-1-2 REGARDING PLANNING COMMISSION – QUORUM. 

There was no action on this item. 
 

h. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY 
CODE SECTION 10-1-3 REGARDING PLANNING COMMISSION – 
MEETINGS; ORGANIZATION RULES. 

There was no action on this item. 
 

i. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY 
CODE SECTION 10-1-4 REGARDING PLANNING COMMISSION – POWERS, 
DUTIES AND AUTHORITY. 

There was no action on this item (Comments Only). 
Section D – Public Projects – Drew Stott questioned grading alleys. His question is being taken 
to the Commission for review. 
 

j. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY 
CODE SECTION 10-1-5 REGARDING PLANNING COMMISSION – ACT AS 
ZONING COMMISSION. 

There was no action on this item. 
 

k. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
SIGN OKLAHOMA MAIN STREET AGREEMENT FOR YEAR 2015-2016. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Willcutt to approve authorizing the Mayor to sign 
Oklahoma Main Street Agreement for year 2015-2016. Voting yes:  Willcutt, Thompson, 
Rosamond, Chitwood, Stott. Voting no:  none. 
 

l. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION SUPPORTING 
CONTINUED PARTICIPATION IN THE MAIN STREET PROGRAM. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Thompson to approve Resolution # 2015-3 
Supporting Continued Participation in the Main Street Program. Voting yes:  Thompson, 
Rosamond, Chitwood, Stott, Willcutt. Voting no:  none. 
 

5. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON CONSENT AGENDA. 
(ITEMS DEEMED NON-CONTROVERSIAL AND ROUTINE IN NATURE TO BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION WITHOUT 

DISCUSSION. ANY COUNCIL MEMBER WISHING TO DISCUSS AN ITEM MAY REQUEST IT BE REMOVED AND PLACED 
ON THE REGULAR AGENDA.) 

a. Approve minutes of June 16th, 2015 Council meeting. 
b. Approve payroll purchase orders through July 17th, 2015.     
c. Approve claims for purchase orders through July 7th, 2015. 

APPROVE PURCHASE ORDERS THROUGH JULY 7TH, 2015. 
FUNDS    PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER        TOTALS 

 GENERAL 1420143154 - 1420143100 $ 85,206.50 
 STREET & DRAINAGE 1420143008 – 910619B 15,574.45 
 GOLF 1420143131 - 1420143019 13,716.59 
 CAPITAL OUTLAY 1420141675 – 910421B 20,582.43  
 RECREATION 1420142997 - 1420142826 25,696.12 
 P.P.W.A. 1420143046 4,000.00 
 E-911 CASH 1420143101 – 1420143115 4,783.43 
 LIBRARY  1420143087 - 1420143084 1,359.83  
 DONATIONS 910628B – 1420143082 $         3,699.98 
   TOTAL        $     174,619.33            

d. Acknowledge receipt of deficient purchase orders.  
There were no deficient purchase orders presented. 

e. Approve expenditure of $6,354.10 to K. Ellis Ritchie, P. C. for actual time and expense 
for July 1st, 2014 through June 30th, 2015. 

f. Approve expenditure of $21,981.73 to United Systems for approval of Internal 
Connections (USAC Form 471 Priority 2) for the Pryor Public Library network re-
configuration project.  Other quotes received:  Heartland Technology Solutions - 
$22,841.00, Ages Computers - $16,915.23 and Peak Uptime - $57,324.42.  The amount 
of $16,172.57 is approved (FCC Registration Number 0021586805) and will be paid by 
E-rate Funding Year 2015.  The City of Pryor Creek will be responsible for $5,809.16 
from fiscal year 2015 – 2016 Library Capital Outlay Funding Account #44-445-5416. 

g. Approve acceptance of bid in the amount of $7,000.00 from the Wyandotte Fire 
Department for the 1990 International Tanker Truck with the Oklahoma Forestry tanks 
on it from the Fire Department with proceeds to be deposited into Capital Outlay Reserve 
– Sale of Surplus (#45-000-4181).  No other bids were received. 

h. Approve expenditure of $155,965.00 to Benchmark Enterprises, LLC, Broken Arrow as 
low bidder for Whitaker Park Splash Pad as recommended by Infrastructure Solutions 
Group, LLC.  Other bid received:  RJR Enterprises, LLC, Rogers, AR - $188,000.00. 



Page 3 of 4 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 7TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

i. Approve acceptance of resignation of Tyler Smith from the Cemetery effective July 6th, 
2015. 

j. Approve surplus of one (1) set of 5 to 100 pound dumbbells from the Pryor Creek 
Recreation Center.  (Additional set of one (1) 5 to 100 pound dumbbells from the Pryor 
Creek Recreation Center was approved for surplus on June 2nd, 2015.) 

k. Approve seeking bids for sale of two (2) sets of 5 to 100 pound dumbbells from the Pryor 
Creek Recreation Center. 

l. Approve hiring Mitchel B. Phillips to fill vacant Dispatcher position at the Police 
Department at Range D, Step 1 beginning July 22nd, 2015 (annual salary $28,597.00). 

m. Approve acceptance of resignation from Animal Control Officer Rick Skinner. 
n. Approve hiring Rebecca M. Payne to fill vacant Animal Control Officer position at 

Range A, Step 1 beginning July 8th, 2015 (annual salary $24,079.00). 
 

Motion was made by Willcutt, second by Rosamond to approve items a-n less items f, h, k. 
Voting yes: Rosamond, Chitwood, Stott, Willcutt, Thompson. Voting no:  none. 
 

f. APPROVE EXPENDITURE OF $21,981.73 TO UNITED SYSTEMS FOR 
APPROVAL OF INTERNAL CONNECTIONS (USAC FORM 471 PRIORITY 2) 
FOR THE PRYOR PUBLIC LIBRARY NETWORK RE-CONFIGURATION 
PROJECT.  OTHER QUOTES RECEIVED:  HEARTLAND TECHNOLOGY 
SOLUTIONS - $22,841.00, AGES COMPUTERS - $16,915.23 AND PEAK 
UPTIME - $57,324.42.  THE AMOUNT OF $16,172.57 IS APPROVED (FCC 
REGISTRATION NUMBER 0021586805) AND WILL BE PAID BY E-RATE 
FUNDING YEAR 2015.  THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK WILL BE 
RESPONSIBLE FOR $5,809.16 FROM FISCAL YEAR 2015 – 2016 LIBRARY 
CAPITAL OUTLAY FUNDING ACCOUNT #44-445-5416. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Willcutt to approve as the best interest of the City 
(the low bid did not include WiFi or meet the specs required as explained by Susan Newberry) 
expenditure of $21,981.73 to United Systems for approval of Internal Connections (USAC Form 
471 Priority 2) for the Pryor Public Library network re-configuration project.  Other quotes 
received:  Heartland Technology Solutions - $22,841.00, Ages Computers - $16,915.23 and Peak 
Uptime - $57,324.42.  The amount of $16,172.57 is approved (FCC Registration Number 
0021586805) and will be paid by E-rate Funding Year 2015.  The City of Pryor Creek will be 
responsible for $5,809.16 from fiscal year 2015 – 2016 Library Capital Outlay Funding Account 
#44-445-5416. Voting yes:  Chitwood, Stott, Willcutt, Thompson, Rosamond. Voting no:  none. 
 

Cheryl Hedgpath and Recreation Center Director Laura Holloway arrived at 6:45 p.m. 
 

h. APPROVE EXPENDITURE OF $155,965.00 TO BENCHMARK ENTERPRISES, 
LLC, BROKEN ARROW AS LOW BIDDER FOR WHITAKER PARK SPLASH 
PAD AS RECOMMENDED BY INFRASTRUCTURE SOLUTIONS GROUP, 
LLC.  OTHER BID RECEIVED:  RJR ENTERPRISES, LLC, ROGERS, AR - 
$188,000.00. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Rosamond to approve expenditure of $155,965.00 to 
Benchmark Enterprises, LLC, Broken Arrow as low bidder for Whitaker Park Splash Pad as 
recommended by Infrastructure Solutions Group, LLC.  Other bid received:  RJR Enterprises, 
LLC, Rogers, AR - $188,000.00. Voting yes:  Willcutt, Hedgpath, Thompson, Rosamond, 
Chitwood. Voting no:  Stott.  
 

k. APPROVE SEEKING BIDS FOR SALE OF TWO (2) SETS OF 5 TO 100 POUND 
DUMBBELLS FROM THE PRYOR CREEK RECREATION CENTER. 

Motion was made by Willcutt, second by Chitwood to approve seeking bids for sale of two (2) 
sets of 5 to 100 pound dumbbells from the Pryor Creek Recreation Center. Voting yes:  Willcutt, 
Hedgpath, Thompson, Rosamond, Chitwood, Stott. Voting no:  none. 
 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
a. BUDGET / PERSONNEL (ROSAMOND) 
Rosamond reported that the Budget / Personnel Committee met last night. The Hotel/Motel 
Board will meet next week. 
b. ORDINANCE / INSURANCE (CHITWOOD) 
Chitwood reported that the Ordinance / Insurance Committee will meet within the next month. 
There is no date set. 
c. STREET / MAINTENANCE GARAGE (WILLCUTT)  
Willcutt reported the Street / Maintenance Garage Committee will meet on July 28th, 2015. 
 

7. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

 



Page 4 of 4 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 7TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

There was no unforeseeable business presented. 
 

8. ADJOURN. 
Motion was made by Willcutt, second by Rosamond to adjourn. Voting yes:  Hedgpath, 
Thompson, Rosamond, Chitwood, Stott, Willcutt. Voting no:  none.  
 

PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Tramel called the Pryor Public Works Authority meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

2. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JUNE 16TH, 2015 
MEETING. 

Motion was made by Stott, second by Chitwood to approve minutes of June 16th, 2015 meeting. 
Voting yes:  Thompson, Rosamond, Chitwood, Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath. Voting no:  none. 
 

3. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO RENEW, 
RATIFY AND AFFIRM A CERTAIN SALES TAX AGREEMENT, DATED 

DECEMBER 1ST, 2011 BETWEEN THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA AND THE PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30TH, 2016. 
Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Thompson to approve Resolution # 2015 - 4 to 
renew, ratify and affirm a certain Sales Tax Agreement, dated December 1st, 2011 between the 
City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma and the Pryor Public Works Authority for the fiscal year ending 
June 30th, 2016. Voting yes:  Rosamond, Chitwood, Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath, Thompson. 
Voting no:  none. 
 

4. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURE OF $4,000.00 
TO GRAND GATEWAY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION FOR 
ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 (JULY 1ST, 2015 TO JUNE 

30TH, 2016). 
Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Willcutt to approve expenditure of $4,000.00 to 
Grand Gateway Economic Development Association for Annual Membership for Fiscal Year 
2016 (July 1st, 2015 to June 30th, 2016). Voting yes:  Chitwood, Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath, 
Thompson, Rosamond. Voting no:  none. 
 

5. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORSEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

No unforeseen business was presented. 
6. ADJOURN. 

Motion was made by Stott, second by Willcutt to adjourn from the Pryor Public Works Authority 
meeting.  Voting yes: Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath, Thompson, Rosamond, Chitwood. Voting no:  
none.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES APPROVED BY MAYOR / P.P.W.A CHAIRMAN JIMMY TRAMEL 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

MINUTES WRITTEN BY CITY CLERK / P.P.W.A SECRETARY EVA SMITH  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 7-4-2 REGARDING THE PARK BOARD 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA: 
 
That Pryor Creek City Code Section 7-4-2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

(Deletions to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 
 
SECTION I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 
A. Created:  The mayor, by and with the consent of the city council, shall appoint seven (7) 

persons, who shall constitute the park board of the city.  The members appointed by the mayor 
shall be appointed for terms of two (2) for one year, two (2) for two (2) years and three (3) for 
three (3) years from July 1, 1979.  All subsequent appointments shall be for a term of three (3) 
years, except appointments to fill vacancies, which appointments shall be made by the mayor, 
and which appointees shall serve the unexpired term of the member who they have been 
appointed to replace. 

 
B. Duties: The park board shall serve as an advisory board for the purpose of assisting the Mayor 

and Council in the operations of the parks and all public grounds of the city.  The control of 

operations of the parks and all public grounds of the city shall remain in the Mayor and City 

Council.  The park board shall have the duty and may consider and investigate any subject matter 

pertaining to the establishment, development, management, operation, maintenance,have the 
custody and care of the parks and all public grounds of the city, and control of beautifying, 
landscaping and improving the sameparks and all public grounds of the city, and all bills 
therefore shall first be approved by the park board and submitted to the city council for 
allowance, as other claims are allowed.  The park board may submit employment 
recommendations and job description recommendations for park related positions to the city 
council for approval.  All employees in park related positions shall beare hired by the city of 
Pryor Creek and are shall be under the supervision of the mayor and city council and subject to 
the disciplinary action by the same. 

 
C. Gifts: Contracts: The park board shall have the power and duty to recommend to the 

mayor and city council the receipt may receive gifts of money or other property on behalf of 
thewhich may be used or held in trust for the purpose given city, and may with the approval of 
the mayor and city council, enter into contracts for agreements with the board of county 
commissioners of the county and the state, through any commission created for the purpose in 
connection with the federal government. 

 
D. Organization: Meetings: At the first meeting of the park board, it shall organize by electing one 

of its members chairman, one of its members vice chairman and one of its members ex officio 
secretary-treasurer.  The meeting place of the park board is in the city council chambers in the 
Graham community building. 

 
E. Compensation: The members of the park board shall serve without compensation. 
 



SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are hereby 

repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision 

and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on this         

day of                          , 2015 

 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

_______________________________ 

Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:_____________ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____ 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 7-5-2 REGARDING DUTIES OF THE 
LIBRARY BOARD 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA: 
That Pryor Creek City Code Section 7-5-2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

(Deletions to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 
 
SECTION I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 
The library board shall serve as an advisory board for the purpose of assisting the Mayor and Council in 

the operations of the City Libraries.  The control of operations of the Libraries shall remain in the Mayor 

and City Council.  The library board shall have the duty and may consider and investigate any subject 

matter pertaining to the establishment, development, management, operation, and maintenance shall have 

control of all libraries owned and operated by the city and shall have the power and duty to recommend to 

the Mayor and the City Council plans, ordinances, rules or regulations pertaining to the establishment, 

development, management, operation, and maintenance of all such libraries.  the library and with theThe 

library board shall have the power and duty to recommend for approval of the mayor and the city council, 

the purchase of books and other supplies necessary for the operation of the library.  The library board 

shall have the power and duty to recommend to the mayor and city council the receive receipt of gifts of 

money, books or other property which may be used or held in trust for the purpose given.  All gifts of 

money shall be properly accounted for, deposited and held, and expended according to state law.  All 

expenses upon claims shall be itemized, filed and paid by the city clerk, upon approval of the city council, 

as required by state law.  When said claims have been presented and payment authorized, they shall be 

delivered to the library board for delivery to the various claimants therfor.  The library board may submit 

employment recommendations and job description recommendations to the city council for positions 

within the library.  All employees of the library are employed by the city of Pryor Creek and are under the 

supervision of the mayor and city council and subject to disciplinary action by the same. 

 
SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are hereby 

repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision 

and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on this         

day of                          , 2015 

 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

_______________________________ 

Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:_____________ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 7-6-2 REGARDING THE CEMETERY 
BOARD 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA: 
 
That Pryor Creek City Code Section 7-6-2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

(Deletions to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 
 
SECTION I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 
A. Created:  There is a cemetery board, which is composed of six (6) members to be appointed by 

the mayor, with the approval and confirmation of the city council.  Each member of the 
cemetery board shall be appointed to hold office for a term of six (6) years, with the exception 
that the original members appointed to the cemetery board shall be appointed for terms of one, 
two (2), three (3), four (4), five (5) and six (6) years, respectively, and with the further exception 
that if a vacancy occurs in the membership of the cemetery board during the unexpired term of 
any member thereof, the mayor, with the approval and confirmation of the city council, shall 
appoint a successor to serve the unexpired term of the member whom he replaces.  Each 
member of the cemetery board shall hold office until his successor is appointed and qualified.  
The mayor and city council may declare a vacancy to exist in any membership on the cemetery 
board in any case where in the opinion of the mayor and city council, any member thereof 
through incapacity, illness or otherwise, is unable or unwilling properly to participate in the 
meetings, deliberations or functions of the cemetery board. 

 
B. Organization: Officers:  The members of the cemetery board shall meet within two (2) weeks 

after their appointment and confirmation to organize by electing from their members a 
chairman, vice chairman and secretary, who shall serve for a period of one year.  The cemetery 
board shall adopt from time to time such bylaws, rules and regulations, and amendments 
thereto, as may be necessary to effectuate the purposes of this chapter. 

 
C. Duties: The cemetery board shall serve as an advisory board for the purpose of assisting the 

Mayor and Council in the operations of the cemeteries owned and operated by the city.  The 

control of operations of the cemeteries shall remain in the Mayor and City Council.  The 

cemetery board shall have the duty and may consider and investigate any subject matter 
pertaining to the establishment, development, management, operation, maintenance, 
beautification and preservation of all cemeteries owned and operated by the city and shall have 
the power and duty to recommend to the mayor and the city council plans, ordinances, rules or 
regulations pertaining to the establishment, development, management, operation, 
maintenance, beautification and preservation of all such cemeteries.  The cemetery board may 
submit employment recommendations and job description recommendations for cemetery 
positions to the city council for approval.  All employees of the cemetery are hired by the city of 
Pryor Creek and are under the supervision of the mayor and city council and subject to 
disciplinary action by same.   

 
D. Compensation: The members of the cemetery board shall serve without compensation. 
 



SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are hereby 

repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision 

and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on this ___        

day of                          , 2015 

 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

_______________________________ 

Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:_____________ 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE TITLE 9 BUILDING 

REGULATIONS AND CODES ADDING SECTION 9-1B-7 REGARDING 

UNDERGROUND LINES AND UTILITY LINES. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR 

CREEK, OKLAHOMA: 

 

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 9 is hereby amended adding thereto Section 9-1B-7 to 

read as follows. 

   

Chapter 1, Article B, Utility Construction 

 

Section 9-1B-7:  UNDERGROUND LINES AND UTILITY LINES:    All installations of 

underground cable lines, telephone lines, communication lines, or other utility lines of 

whatsoever nature or type shall be installed at a minimum cover depth of not less than eighteen 

(18) inches below grade, or at such other deeper depth as may be required by applicable laws or 

regulations of the City, County, State or other governmental entity having jurisdiction thereof.  

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this ____ day of ____________, 2015 

 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:__________________________ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 10 BY ADDING CHAPTER 1A SECTIONS 1, 2, 3, AND 4 TO THE 

CITY CODE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, 

REGARDING ZONING COMMISSION CREATION AND COMPOSITION; QUORUM; MEETINGS, 

ORGANIZATION AND RULES; POWERS, DUTIES AND AUTHORITIES THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR 

REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-WIT: 

SECTION 1. 

1. Title 10 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, State of 

 Oklahoma is hereby amended by adding a new Chapter 1A, Sections 1, 2, 3, and 4 as 

follows, to-wit: 

 

CHAPTER 1A 

ZONING COMMISSION 

 

SECTION: 

10-1A-1: Created; Composition 

10-1A-2: Quorum 

10-1A-3: Meetings; Organization, Rules 

10-1A-4: Powers, Duties And Authority 

 

 

10-1A-1: CREATED; COMPOSITION; COMPENSATION: 

The Planning Commission of the City is appointed by the City to serve as the Zoning Commission 

of the City.  Members of the Zoning Commission shall serve without compensation in like 

manner as the Planning Commission. 

 

10-1A-2  QUORUM: 

Five (5) members of the Zoning Commission shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business.  When a quorum is present a vote by the simple majority of the members present shall 

be required for the transaction of business of the Commission. 

 

10-1A-3  MEETINGS; ORGANIZATION, RULES: 

Meetings of the Zoning Commission shall be held at the call of the chairperson and at such other 

times as the Commission may determine.  The provisions of the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, 

OKLA. STAT. Tit. 25 §§ 301 et seq. as it now exists or as it may hereinafter be amended by the 

Oklahoma Legislature shall apply to all public meetings of the Commission.  The members of the 



Zoning Commission shall, in June of each year, elect from their members a chairperson, a vice 

chairperson and secretary, who shall serve in their elected office for a period of one (1) year and 

shall adopt from time to time such bylaws, rules and regulations and amendments thereto as 

may be necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Chapter. 

 

10-1A-4  POWERS, DUTIES AND AURHTORITY: 

 

A. General Powers, Duties And Authority: 

For the purpose of promoting health, safety, morals or the general welfare of the community 

the Commission shall prepare and recommend to the City Council regulations relating to the 

height, number of stories, and size of buildings and other structures, the percentage of lot that 

may be occupied, the size of yards, courts and other open spaces, the density of population, and 

the location and use of buildings, structures and land for trade, industry, residence or other 

purposes.  The Zoning Commission shall inure to such other powers and be obligated to the 

performance of such other duties as shall be prescribed to it by the ordinances of the City or 

laws of the state of Oklahoma. 

 

B. Districts And Regulations: 

The Commission shall prepare and recommend to the City Council the division of the City into 

districts of such number, shape and area as it deems suitable in carrying out its powers as to 

buildings, land and structures.  The Commission shall prepare and recommend to the City 

Council regulations concerning the erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair or 

use of buildings, structures or land within the districts.  All such regulations shall be uniform for 

each class or kind of buildings throughout each district, but the regulations in one district may 

differ from those in other districts. 

 

C. Purpose Of Regulations; Accordance With Comprehensive Plan 

The regulations concerning buildings, structures and land prepared and recommended by the 

Commission to the City Council shall be made in accordance with the City's Comprehensive Plan 

and be designed to accomplish any of the following objectives: 

 (1) To lessen congestion in the streets; 

 (2) To secure safety from fire, panic and other dangers; 

(3) To promote health and the general welfare, including the peace and quality of life of the 

district; 

 (4) To provide adequate light and air; 

 (5) To prevent the overcrowding of land; 

 (6) To promote historical preservation; 

 (7) To avoid undue concentration of population; or 

(8) To facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks 

and other public requirements.   

The regulations prepared and recommended by the Commission to the City Council shall be 

made with reasonable consideration, among other things, as to the character of the district and 



its peculiar suitability for particular uses, and with a view to conserving the value of buildings 

and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the City. 

 

D. EMPLOYMENT OF STAFF, 

 PAYMENT of EXPENSES: 

The Zoning Commission shall have the power and authority to employ engineers, attorneys, 

clerks and a secretary, or other personnel or consultants as it shall deem reasonable and 

necessary for the performance of its powers and duties subject to approval of such employment 

of personnel or consultants by the City Council and upon such terms of employment as the City 

Council may approve.  The compensation of such personnel or consultants shall be paid out of 

the City Treasury as other officers, employees or consultants.  The necessary expenses incurred 

by the Zoning Commission incurred in the performance of its powers and duties shall be 

appropriated and paid out of the City Treasury as other legally incurred expenses of the 

Municipality but in no event may the Zoning Commission be authorized to create a deficiency. 

 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK WITH THE 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE BEING VOTED ON AND APPROVED SEPARATELY THIS 

_____ DAY OF ___________________, 2015.  

 

       __________________________________ 

ATTEST:      JIMMY TRAMEL, MAYOR 

 

____________________________ 

EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

____________________________ 

K. ELLIS RITCHIE 

Dated:   _________________, 2015 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-1 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - CREATION; COMPOSITION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-1 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

10-1-1:  CREATED; COMPOSITION: 

 

A. Number; Compensation:   

There is hereby created within and for the City a Planning Commission, which shall consist of 

seven (7) citizens of the Citymembers, as hereinafter provided.  The members of the Planning 

Commission shall be nominated and appointed solely with reference to their fitness and without 

a reference to party affiliations, and shall serve without compensation, except as hereafter 

provided. Each member appointed by the Mayor and approved and confirmed by the City 

Council must be a current resident of the City at the time of appointment and remain a resident 

of the City throughout the members term.  If a member ceases to be a resident of the City 

during a member's unexpired term a vacancy shall occur in the position of the member. 

 

B. Appointment:   

The Mayor shall appoint the members of the Planning Commission, with exception of the 

member designated as "Ex Officio" as hereinafter stated, subject to approval and confirmation 

by the City Council. 

 

C. Term; Vacancies:   

Members of the Planning Commission shall hold office for a term of three (3) years.  When a 

vacancy occurs on the commission during the unexpired term of any member, an appointment 

shall be made by the Mayor subject to approval and confirmation by the City Council of a person 

to fill the unexpired term.   

 

D. Ex Officio Members:   

The Mayor, the General Manager of Utilities and the Building Official of the City shall be an ex 

officio members of the Planning Commission without voting powers, but shall receive no 

separate compensation apart from that of the other than their fixed salary as said officials 

received in the capacity of the Building Official position with the City. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 



 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 

  
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________ 

 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-2 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - QUORUM: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-2 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

10-1-2:  QUORUM: 

 Four (4)Five (5) members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a quorum for the 

transaction of business.  However, no action shall be taken and be binding upon the Planning 

Commission, unless concurred with by not less than a majority of all members comprising the 

Planning Commission. When a quorum is present a vote by the simple majority of the members 

present shall be required for the transaction of business of the Commission. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 

  
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________ 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-3 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - MEETINGS; ORGANIZATION, RULES: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-3 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

10-1-3:  MEETINGS; ORGANIZATION, RULES: 

 Meetings of the Commission shall be held at the call of the chairperson and at such other times 

as the Commission may determine.  The provisions of the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, OKLA. 

STAT. Tit. 25 §§ 301 et seq. as it now exists or as it may hereinafter be amended by the 

Oklahoma Legislature shall apply to all public meetings of the Commission.  The members of the 

Planning Commission shall, in June of each year, elect from their members a 

chairmanchairperson, a vice chairman chairperson and secretary, who shall serve in their 

elected office for a period of one (1) year and shall adopt from time to time such bylaws, rules 

and regulations and amendments thereto as may be necessary to effectuate the purposes of 

this Chapter. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 

  
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________ 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-4 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - POWERS, DUTIES AND AUTHORITY: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-4 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

10-1-4  POWERS, DUTIES AND AUTHORITY: 

A. Employment of Staff:  The members of the Planning Commission shall serve without pay.  It is 

the duty of such Planning Commission to prepare from time to time, plans for the systematic 

development and betterment of the City, as a place of residence or for business.  It shall have 

the power and authority to employ engineers, attorneys, clerks and a secretary, or other help 

deemed necessary, subject to the approval of the City Council.  The salary and compensation of 

such employees shall be fixed by the City Council and shall be paid out of the City Treasury as 

other officers and employees, and the necessary expenses incurred by the Planning Commission 

shall be paid out of the City Treasury as other legal expenses of the City government. 

A. General Powers, Duties And Authority: 

 The Planning Commission shall prepare from time to time plans for the systematic development 

and betterment of the City as a place of residence or for business.  It may consider and 

investigate any subject matter tending to the development and betterment of the City, and 

make recommendations as it may deem advisable concerning the adoption thereof, to any 

department of the municipal government, and for any purpose make or cause to be made 

surveys, maps or plans.  The Planning Commission shall inure to such other powers and be 

obligated to the performance of such other duties as shall be prescribed to it by the ordinances 

of the City or laws of the state of Oklahoma. 

 

B. SUBDIVISION Of Land: 

 1.  The Planning Commission may consider and investigate any subject matter tending to the 

development and betterment of the City and make recommendations as it may deem advisable 

concerning the adoption thereof to any department of the City government, and for any 

purpose make or cause to be made, surveys, maps or plans.  Before the final action shall be 

taken by the City Council, or in department in the City government, in the location and design of 

any public building, statue, memorial, park, parkway, boulevard, street and alley, playground, 

public ground, bridge or the change in any location of any street or alley, or the grade thereof, 

such question shall be submitted to the Planning Commission for investigation and report. 

 

 2.  All plans, plats or replats of land laid out in lots or plats and streets, alleys or other portions 

of the same intended to be dedicated to public or private use within the corporate limits of the 

City, shall first be submitted to the Planning Commission for its approval or rejection. 



 

 3.  The disapproval of any such plan, plat or replat by the City Council shall be deemed a refusal 

of the purported dedication shown thereon. 

B. Employment of Staff, 

 Payment of Expenses: 

 The Planning Commission shall have the power and authority to employ engineers, attorneys, 

clerks and a secretary, or other personnel or consultants as it shall deem reasonable and 

necessary for the performance of its powers and duties subject to approval of such employment 

of personnel or consultants by the City Council and upon such terms of employment as the City 

Council may approve.  The compensation of such personnel or consultants shall be paid out of 

the City Treasury as other officers, employees or consultants.  The necessary expenses incurred 

by the Planning Commission incurred in the performance of its powers and duties shall be 

appropriated and paid out of the City Treasury as other legally incurred expenses of the 

municipality, but in no event may the Planning Commission be authorized to create a deficiency. 

C. Uniformity of Regulations:  The Planning Commission may recommend division of the City into 

districts of such number, size and area as may be deemed best suited to carry out the zoning 

purpose.  All such regulations shall be uniform for each class or kind of buildings throughout 

each district, but the regulations in one district may differ from those in other districts. 

 

CD. Comprehensive Plan Considerations:   

Such regulations and recommendations shall be made in accordance with a Comprehensive Plan 

and designed to lessen congestion in the streets;  to secure safety from fire, panic and other 

dangers;  to promote health and general welfare;  to provide adequate light and air;  to prevent 

the overcrowding of land; to avoid undue concentration of population;  to facilitate the 

adequate provisions of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks and other public 

requirements.  Such regulations shall be made with reasonable consideration, among other 

things, as to the character of the district and its peculiar suitability for particular uses, and with a 

view to conserving the value of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land 

throughout the City.The Planning Commission shall conduct a complete formal review of the 

municipality's Comprehensive Plan which is in effect on the date of passage of this ordinance 

not later than the last day (June 30) of the next fiscal year subsequent to the fiscal year in which 

this ordinance is passed and approved by the City Council.  Subsequent to the formal review of 

the municipality's Comprehensive Plan as specified in the preceding sentence the Planning 

Commission shall conduct and complete periodic formal reviews of the municipality's 

Comprehensive Plan on a schedule of ten (10) year intervals with each subsequent formal 

review to be completed no later than the last day of the tenth (10th) fiscal year following each 

preceding formal review. 

 

D. Public Projects: 

Before final action may be taken by the City Council, or any department of the City on the 

location, construction or design of any public building, statue, memorial, park, parkway, 

boulevard, street and alley, playground, public ground, or bridge, or the change in the location 



or grade of any street or alley, the question shall be submitted to the Planning Commission for 

investigation and report of its findings and recommendations to the City Council.  The report of 

the Planning Commission's findings and recommendation shall be completed and submitted to 

the City Council within sixty (60) days of the date such question was submitted to the Planning 

Commission for investigation and report, or such other time period as may be prescribed or 

allowed by the City Council. 

 

E. Additional Prescribed Authority:  The Planning Commission shall have additional authority and 

responsibility as the City Council shall from time to time prescribe. 

 Subdivision of Land: 

(1) The Planning Commission shall exercise jurisdiction over the subdivision of land within 

the corporate limits of the City. 

(2) The Planning Commission shall adopt regulations governing the subdivision of land 

within its jurisdiction.  Which regulations shall not become effective until same be 

approved by the City Council and published as provided by law for the publication of 

ordinances. 

(3) All plans, plats, or replats of land laid out in lots or blocks, and the streets, alleys, or 

other portions of the same, intended to be dedicated to public or private use, within the 

corporate limits of the City, shall first be submitted to the Planning Commission for its 

approval or rejection.  Before said plans, plats, or replats shall be entitled to be recorded 

in the office of the County Clerk, they shall be approved by the City Council. 

(4) Any plat filed without the endorsed approval of the City Council shall not import notice 

nor impose any obligation or duties on the City. 

(5) The disapproval of any such plan, plat or replat by the City Council shall be deemed a 

refusal of the proposed dedication shown thereon. 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 

  
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 



ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________ 

 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-5 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - ACT AS ZONING COMMISSION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-5 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

10-1-5  ACT AS ZONING COMMISSION: 

 The Planning Commission shall also act as the Zoning Commission., and shall have the power to 

prepare and recommend to the City Council zoning district boundaries and appropriate 

regulations relating to the height, number of stories and size of buildings and other structures, 

the percentage of lot that may be occupied, the size of yards, courts and other open spaces, the 

density of population, the location and use of buildings, structures and land for trade, industry, 

residences and other purposes. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 
       CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________  



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 3-10A-7 REGARDING 

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR 

CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  That Pryor Creek City Code Title 3, Section 3-10A-7 is hereby amended 

to read as follows:  (deletions to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section 1:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

3-10A-7: RULES AND REGULATIONS: 

  A. Dates And Hours Of Sale: 

1. Retail Alcoholic Beverage Store: No person shall open for 

business or keep open for business or sell or deliver alcoholic beverages, 

as defined by 37 Oklahoma Statutes section 506the Oklahoma Alcoholic 

Beverage Control Act (OKLA. STAT. Tit. 37 §§ 501 et seq) as now 

existing or hereinafter modified, to any person at a retail alcoholic 

beverage store in the City on any Sunday, New Year's Day, Memorial 

Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, 

Christmas Day or while the polls are open on the day of any general, 

primary, runoff primary or a special election, whether national, State, 

County or City, or any other day, except between the hours of ten o'clock 

(10:00) A.M. and nine (9:00) o'clock P.M. for in-store sales and between 

the hours of ten o'clock (10:00) A.M. and six o'clock (6:00) P.M. for 

drive-through sales. 

2. Wholesale Dealer:  No wholesale dealer in alcoholic beverages and no 

officer, agent or employee of such a dealer shall sell or deliver to any 

retail alcoholic beverage store within the City any amount of spirits or 

wines on Saturday of any week, on Sunday of any week, on New Year's 

Day, on Memorial Day, on the Fourth of July, on Labor Day, on the day 

of any general, primary, runoff primary or special election, whether 

national, State, County or City. 

  B. Advertising Signs: 

1. No person owning, operating or maintaining a retail alcoholic beverage 

store shall cause or permit it to be designated by more than one sign, 

which shall contain only the words "Retail Alcoholic Liquor Store" or 

any combination of such words or any of them, and which shall contain 

no letter or figure more than four inches (4") in height or more than three 

inches (3") in width and in which the lines of words, if more than one, 

shall not be more than one inch (1") apart. 

2. No person shall advertise or cause to be advertised in any manner, other 

than as authorized by subsection B1 of this Section, for the sale of 

alcoholic beverages within the limits of the City. 

  C. Sales And Deliveries: 



1. No person shall sell or deliver alcoholic beverages out of any retail 

alcoholic beverage store other than: 

    a. In retail containers; 

    b. At ordinary room temperatures; 

    c. In the original package; and 

    d. For consumption off the premises. 

2. No person owning, employed in or in any manner assisting in the 

maintenance and operation of such a store shall suffer or permit any 

alcoholic beverage to be consumed, or any retail container of such 

beverage to be opened on the premises of such a store. 

D. Consumption On Premises:  No person shall drink or consume in any manner 

alcoholic beverages on the premises of a retail alcoholic beverage store, nor shall 

any person open or break the seal of any original package or retail container 

containing alcoholic beverages on the premises of any such retail alcoholic 

beverage store. 

E. Intoxicated Or Deficient Persons:  No person shall sell, deliver or furnish 

alcoholic beverages within the City to an intoxicated person or knowingly to any 

person who has been adjudged insane or mentally deficient. 

F. Transportation In Vehicle:  It is unlawful to transport any alcoholic beverage, 

unless the same is: 

1. In an unopened original container with seal unbroken and the original 

cap or cork not removed from the container; or 

2. In the trunk or other closed compartment or other container, out of public 

view and out of reach of the driver or any occupant of a vehicle. 

G. Public Drinking And Intoxication:  No person within this City shall drink 

intoxicating liquor or alcoholic beverage in any public place, nor shall any person 

be intoxicated in a public place within this City, or shall any owner, operator or 

manager of any business or public place to which the public is generally invited 

allow any intoxicated person to remain in or upon said premises. 

H. Recreational Places:  No person operating a café, restaurant, club or any place of 

recreation within this City, and no employee engaged in connection with the 

operation of such a café, restaurant, club or place of recreation, shall permit any 

person to be drunk or intoxicated in said place of business. 

I. Public Property:  It shall be unlawful for any person to consume alcoholic 

beverages or low-point beer while upon any City owned or City controlled 

property unless the City Council shall have previously authorized the premises or 

the event at which such consumption is authorized, for the lawful consumption of 

alcoholic beverages or low-point beer subject to such reasonable restrictions and 

conditions as the Council prescribe.  



SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are hereby 

repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision 

and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on this         

day of                                    , 2015 

  

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________ 



From: Jimmy Tramel
To: mooreh@pryorok.org
Subject: FW: proposed ordinance
Date: Tuesday, July 14, 2015 9:28:33 AM
Attachments: Ordinance amending 5-4D-13(H).pdf

 
 
Jimmy J Tramel
Mayor
Pryor Creek ,Ok
tramelj@pryorok.org
918 825 4077
918 373 0466
 
From: Ben Sherrer [mailto:ben@bensherrer.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, July 08, 2015 1:06 PM
To: tramelj@pryorcreek.org
Subject: proposed ordinance
 
Mayor:
 
I've drafted a proposed amendment to our existing curfew ordinance.  I think this will help me
 prosecute some first time offenders who need to get a ticket and not just parental notification.
 
I don't recall proper protocol; does this have to go through the Ordinance committee for
 recommendation to the full council?
 
Thanks, Ben

mailto:tramelj@pryorcreek.org
mailto:mooreh@pryorok.org
mailto:tramelj@pryorok.org



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-___


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA,
AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 5-4D-13(H) and (I), REGARDING
CURFEW VIOLATIONS, PARENTAL RESPONSIBILITY, AND REFERRAL TO OFFICE
OF JUVENILE AFFAIRS.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR
CREEK, OKLAHOMA:


Section 1. That Pryor Creek City Code Sections 5-4D-13(H) and (I) are hereby amended to
read as follows (deletions to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined):


H.  First Violation: In the case of a first violation by a minor, the Chief of Police shall
by certified mail or in person send to a parent written notice of the violation with a
warning that any subsequent violation will result in full enforcement of this Section,
including enforcement of parental responsibility and of applicable penalties. Parental
Responsibility: A parent, legal guardian, or person acting in loco parentis of a minor
child who is convicted of a curfew violation may be held liable and assessed a fine
[continued]
I.  Subsequent Violations: If, after the warning notice pursuant to this Section of a
first violation by a minor , a parent violates this section by a second violation, the
second violation shall be treated as a first offense by a parent.  For such first parental
offense, a parent shall be fined as provided in Section 1-4-1 of this Code.  Any minor
who shall violate any of the provisions of this section more than three (3) times shall
be reported by the Chief of Police to the juvenile authorities of such minor referred
to the Office of Juvenile Affairs.  Reporting to the juvenile authorities shall also be
authorized followed in any case where the imposing of a fine or fines upon a parent
shall not be effective, or where for any other reason the provisions of this Section
cannot be made effective by the imposing of penalties under this Section.


Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular
session on this ____ day of ____________, 2015.


______________________________
Jimmy Tramel, Mayor


ATTEST:


__________________________
Eva Smith, Town Clerk


1







ORDINANCE NO. 2015-___

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA,
AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 5-4D-13(H) and (I), REGARDING
CURFEW VIOLATIONS, PARENTAL RESPONSIBILITY, AND REFERRAL TO OFFICE
OF JUVENILE AFFAIRS.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR
CREEK, OKLAHOMA:

Section 1. That Pryor Creek City Code Sections 5-4D-13(H) and (I) are hereby amended to
read as follows (deletions to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined):

H.  First Violation: In the case of a first violation by a minor, the Chief of Police shall
by certified mail or in person send to a parent written notice of the violation with a
warning that any subsequent violation will result in full enforcement of this Section,
including enforcement of parental responsibility and of applicable penalties. Parental
Responsibility: A parent, legal guardian, or person acting in loco parentis of a minor
child who is convicted of a curfew violation may be held liable and assessed a fine
[continued]
I.  Subsequent Violations: If, after the warning notice pursuant to this Section of a
first violation by a minor , a parent violates this section by a second violation, the
second violation shall be treated as a first offense by a parent.  For such first parental
offense, a parent shall be fined as provided in Section 1-4-1 of this Code.  Any minor
who shall violate any of the provisions of this section more than three (3) times shall
be reported by the Chief of Police to the juvenile authorities of such minor referred
to the Office of Juvenile Affairs.  Reporting to the juvenile authorities shall also be
authorized followed in any case where the imposing of a fine or fines upon a parent
shall not be effective, or where for any other reason the provisions of this Section
cannot be made effective by the imposing of penalties under this Section.

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular
session on this ____ day of ____________, 2015.

______________________________
Jimmy Tramel, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________
Eva Smith, Town Clerk

1











THE LAKOTA GROUP    July 2, 2015 
116 W. Illinois Street 
7th Floor 
Chicago, Illinois 60654 
312.467.5445, 312.467.5484 (fax) 
 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE –CITY OF PRYOR CREEK 
 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT between The Lakota Group (Lakota or Consultant) and 
the City of Pryor Creek (City) 
 
I. PURPOSE 
The primary purpose of the City of Pryor Creek Comprehensive Plan Update is to help guide the City’s future 
growth, the revitalization of its downtown and traditional neighborhood areas, and the enhancement of its 
economic base.  The Comprehensive Plan will also focus on key implementation strategies that identify important 
implementation partners and key short and long-term actions. 
 
II. WORK PLAN 
 
The work plan for this assignment is described in Tasks 1.1 through 4.17 of The Lakota Group’s RFP response 
dated April 30, 2015, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 
 
III.   TIMELINE  
Lakota recognizes that time is of the essence and will complete the Comprehensive Plan Update in 12 months 
from the date of contract execution.  A more complete project schedule will be prepared after execution of this 
contract. 
 
IV.   COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
Lakota shall give notices and comply with laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and orders of all public authorities 
applicable to these services and shall comply with all federal, state and local tax laws and social security, 
unemployment compensation and workers compensation acts applicable to the performance of these services.   
 
V.   EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 
Each party represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and will operate to comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws relating to equal employment opportunities, and if required, with the rules or 
regulations enforced by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance or any similar federal or state agency 
monitoring employment practices or government contracts. 
 
VI.   ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement contains the full understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and it 
supersedes all prior proposals, agreements, memoranda, statements and representations, written or oral, 
between the parties. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the Prime Contract, the 
terms of this Agreement shall govern.  
 



Professional Services Agreement: Comprehensive Plan Update – City of Pryor Creek  2  

VII.   CONFIDENTIALITY 
No party hereto shall disclose any information of any nature regarding this Agreement, except that either party 
may make such disclosures as are specifically required by law.  
 
VIII. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Lakota certifies the no employee or officer of any agency with an interest in the Agreement has any pecuniary 
interest in the business of the Consultant or this Agreement, nor does any employee or officer have an interest 
that would conflict in any manner or degree with the Consultant’s performance of this Agreement.  
 
IX.   GOVERNING LAW 
This Agreement has been executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of 
which shall be deemed to be the same agreement. 
 
X.   INSURANCE 
Lakota and its subcontractors will provide the City of Pryor Creek with evidence of insurance, including liability, 
umbrella and automobile as required.  The City will be named as an additional insured as appropriate to City 
requirements. 
 
XI.   SEVERABILITY 
For any reason, the Agreement may be cancelled, in whole or in part, by Lakota or upon the City’s written notice.  
The City may pay Lakota’s costs actually incurred as of the date of receipt of notice of default.  Upon termination, 
Lakota will deliver all documents and products of whatever kind, and their reproducible origins related to the 
assignment, which have been produced to the date of the notice of termination. 
 
XII.   INVOICING 
Lakota shall submit monthly invoices to the City, and each invoice shall be subject to the audit and approval of the 
City. Invoices will be accompanied by receipts for all reimbursable expenses and shall be itemized and detailed as 
to the type/date of the services/tasks performed.  Invoices past due 30 days will be subject to interest charges. 
 
XIII. PROJECT TERMS  
Professional fees and reimbursable expenses for Lakota and its sub-consultants are estimated as follows:  
 
Total Project Budget $155,197 including expenses. 
 
The above fee/expense estimate is negotiable and can be adjusted based on clarifications or changes to the work 
scope.  It includes one unbound original and 20 bound paper copies as well as 1 electronic copy.  If additional 
report copies are requested, printing cost estimates will be provided.  Copies of all maps, including the Future Land 
Use Map will also be provided along with snapshots of plan goals, illustrations and other materials.  The fee also 
includes the production of all meeting minutes and proceedings. 
 
The above fee estimate does not include any additional meetings, project reviews, presentations, studies, plans or 
designs other than those outlined in Section II: Work Plan.    
 
Any additional services requested of Lakota beyond those listed above will be conducted on an hourly basis and 
billed according to Lakota's current billing rates.  If requested, a fee estimate will be provided for a task or an 
assignment based on a defined work scope.   
 

  



Professional Services Agreement: Comprehensive Plan Update – City of Pryor Creek  3  

Lakota Billing Rates (2015): 
Principal   $250 
Associate Principal  $220 
Vice President  $200 
Senior Associate/Senior Advisor   $180 
Project Planner/Designer/Manager  $150 
Planner/Urban Designer/Landscape Architect  $120 - $130 
Research/Operations Staff      $90 

 
Any additional services requested of Urban Development Services, T.Y. Linn International or Duncan Associates 
beyond those listed above will be conducted on an hourly basis and billed according to each firm's current billing 
rates.  If requested, a fee estimate will be provided for a task or an assignment based on a defined work scope.   
 
Reimbursable expenses will be billed at 1.1 times direct expense to cover administration and will include: 
 

 Travel (mileage/parking/cabs/out-of-region meals & lodging) 
 Delivery (messenger/express/postage) 
 Copying/Reproduction 
 Computer Plots 
 Long Distance Communication 
 Renderings/Models (if requested by client) 
 Special Supplies (if extra markers/graphic tape/pantone needed) 
 Miscellaneous  (municipal documents, special reports, data) 

 
Professional fees and expenses will be billed monthly for work completed.  Unpaid invoices will bear 1.5% interest per 
month past 30 days. 

 
 
XIV. NOTICES 
Written notice between the parties shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person or by certified 
mail to the following addressees:  

 
To the City:     To the Consultant:    
 
City of Pryor Creek    The Lakota Group  
12 North Rowe St    116 W. Illinois Street, 7th Floor 
Pryor Creek, OK  74362   Chicago, Illinois 60654   

 
Either party may terminate this agreement 15 days after written notice. Lakota shall be compensated for all 
services performed up to the date of notice.  
 
 
Please indicate acceptance of this agreement by signing one copy and returning it to our office listed above. 
Lakota will begin work after receiving written authorization to proceed via fax, email, mail or messenger.   
 
The Lakota Group appreciates the opportunity to provide the City of Pryor Creek with Professional Planning 
Services. 
 
 
The Lakota Group    City of Pryor Creek 
 
__________________________          



Professional Services Agreement: Comprehensive Plan Update – City of Pryor Creek  4  

Scott Freres, PLA, ASLA    Signature 
Principal  
             

Printed Name 
___________________________ 
Date 

                                        
                           

             
Title 

 
 
             

Date 
 

 
  



Professional Services Agreement: Comprehensive Plan Update – City of Pryor Creek  5  

Attached Response to RFP from The Lakota Group 
Dated April 30, 2015 




















































































	Pryor Creek Comp Plan_ Update Contract 20150701.pdf
	THE LAKOTA GROUP    July 2, 2015
	116 W. Illinois Street
	7th Floor
	Chicago, Illinois 60654
	Comprehensive plan UPDATE –city of PRYOR CREEK

	I. Purpose
	II. Work Plan
	III.   TIMELINE
	IV.   COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
	V.   Equal Opportunity
	VI.   Entire Agreement
	VII.   Confidentiality
	VIII. Conflict of Interest
	IX.   Governing Law
	X.   Insurance
	XI.   Severability
	XII.   Invoicing
	XIII. PROJECT TERMS
	Any additional services requested of Lakota beyond those listed above will be conducted on an hourly basis and billed according to Lakota's current billing rates.  If requested, a fee estimate will be provided for a task or an assignment based on a de...
	Any additional services requested of Urban Development Services, T.Y. Linn International or Duncan Associates beyond those listed above will be conducted on an hourly basis and billed according to each firm's current billing rates.  If requested, a fe...

	XIV. Notices

	Pryor Creek Comp Plan_ Update Contract 20150701.pdf
	THE LAKOTA GROUP    July 2, 2015
	116 W. Illinois Street
	7th Floor
	Chicago, Illinois 60654
	Comprehensive plan UPDATE –city of PRYOR CREEK

	I. Purpose
	II. Work Plan
	III.   TIMELINE
	IV.   COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
	V.   Equal Opportunity
	VI.   Entire Agreement
	VII.   Confidentiality
	VIII. Conflict of Interest
	IX.   Governing Law
	X.   Insurance
	XI.   Severability
	XII.   Invoicing
	XIII. PROJECT TERMS
	Any additional services requested of Lakota beyond those listed above will be conducted on an hourly basis and billed according to Lakota's current billing rates.  If requested, a fee estimate will be provided for a task or an assignment based on a de...
	Any additional services requested of Urban Development Services, T.Y. Linn International or Duncan Associates beyond those listed above will be conducted on an hourly basis and billed according to each firm's current billing rates.  If requested, a fe...

	XIV. Notices




